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Our Cémmunity Muliti Academy Trust
(A company Iiinited by guarantee)

Trustees' report
for the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees of the Our Community Multi Academy Trust present their annual report and auditors report of the
charitable company for the period of 1st September 2022 to 31st August 2023. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a director’s report under company law. .

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies ‘set out on pages 32 to
36 of the attached financial statements and comply with the Trusts’ memorandum and amcles of assocnatlon and
- all applacable laws. .

The Trust's operates as a multi-academy trust managing the provision of education. to ‘pupils aged 4 to 11
serving a catchment area in Sittingbourne, Canterbury and Dymchurch and Lydd in Kent, namely::
Borden Church of England Primary School
. Bredgar Church of England Primary School
Dymchurch Primary School
Lydd Primary School. :
Lynsted & Norton Primary.School
Milstead & Frinsted Church of England Prlmary School
Minterne Community Junior School .
Petham Primary School
Selling Church of England Primary School
The, Oaks Community Infant School.

The trust has a pupil capacity of 1860 and had a roll of 1677 in the school census on 19th January 2023
. {excluding nursery children). )

. Structure, Gpvernancé and Management
Constitution

Our Community Multi Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable -
company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The Trustees of Our Community Multi Academy Trust and are also the directors of the charitable company for
the purposes.of company law. The charitable company is known as Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(OCMAT).

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, except as noted, are included in the Reference and '
Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of ‘the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceedmg £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Subject to the -provisions of the Companies Act 2006, every trustee or other officer or auditor of the Company.
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability incurred: by him / her in that capacity in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which he is
acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to him/ her by the court form liability or -
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to affairs of the Company.

. Our Community Multi Academy Trust ensures insurance includes protection for trustees from claims arlsmg from
negligent acts, errors, or omissions whilst on Trust busuness -
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4 Our»Cornmunity Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Method of Recrurtment and Appomtment or Electlon of Trustees

The recruitment of new Trustees is as defined within the Articles of Assocuatlon Master Funding Agreement and

" the Scheme of Delegation, and is subject to approval by the Trust Members. Recruitment is based on skills,
knowledge and behaviours as set out in ‘A Competency Framework for Governance 2017’. Recruitment of
Governors to the Local Monitoring Council (formerly known as Local Governing Body) for each school is subject
to approval by the Board of Trustees in line with the gundance within the Trust's Scheme of Delegation.

The term of office for a Trustee or Governor is four years. In line with the academies handbook the CEO isno
longer a trustee but will still attend all board and committee meetings. ’

We have been successful in recruntlng new directors for September 2023 who meet the skills shortage the Trust
Board had identified but are still looking to recrult directors with particular skills to enable our committees to work
effectlvely .

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction' and Training of Governors

'The training provuded for new Trustees depends on their existing experience, but induction does include a tour of -
the OCMAT schools and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees are provided with access to policies,
procedures, minutes, accounts, pIans and other documentatlon that they will need to undertake their role as -
Trustees : :

AII Trustees have access to an online e learning tool which delivers a wide range of training with some face-to-

- face training being delivered to Governors. The Trust continues with its annual skill's re-assessment at all levels
of Governance, to identify areas for potential training and the Trust has implemented its own CPD Portal which is
available to staff and all levels of Governance to further expand the training, sharing of good practice and access
to-up to date guidance and knowledge
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Our Community Multi Aoademy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023
Organisational Structure

The management structure of the Trust consists of four levels which are as follows

. Members, who appoint the Directors and delegate responsibility for governance and runnmg ‘of the Multi
- Academy Trust to the Board of Directors
. Board of Directors (BOD) (Trustees) is where legal accountability sits. The BOD delegate responS|b|I|ty to

Local Monitoring Councils through a Scheme of Delegation which is reviewed and updated annually.

. ‘Trust Leaders (Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer; Chief Operating Officer, Headteachers x
11, Executive Officers x 3) lead and manage the Trust on behalf of the Board of Directors through
implementing the Trust's vision and values and through delivery of achlevement standards quality of
teaching, finance, safeguarding, health and safety and human resources.

. Local Monitoring Councils are responsible but not legally accountable for ensuring that their school

’ - achieves good outcomes for all its pupils and complies with statutory and Trust policies and procedures.

The Trustees (Directors) are responsible for setting strategy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
Muiti Academy Trust usifig budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the Multi Academy Trust,
capltal expenditure and the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer.

!

Trustees delegate some duties to the' Local Monltormg Councils of the schools within the Trust, mcludmg
overseeing the implementation and monitoring of local -polices, health and safety, safeguarding, whilst retaining
overall accountability. The details of the delegation are defined within the Trust Scheme of Delegation and in the

LMC Monltorlng Booklet. . :

Within the academic year the Trust Board |ts commlttees contlnued to meet vrrtually, holdmg ‘a Strategic
Directors Day in June 2023. The Local Monitoring Councils held face to'face meetings, whilst providing access
via Teams to those Governors to attend meetings virtually.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Tru,st has a pay policy and clear performance and appraisal policy in place within the Trust schools and
works in line with the current Teachers Pay and Conditions document-and current Kent County Council's Support
Staff Terms and Condmons '

The Chief Executive Offlcer pay is currently set in line W|th full Teacher's Pay and Condltlons document and the
current size of the Trust in terms of pupil numbers.

The Executive Officers for School Improvement, lnclusron and Early Years pay is currently set in line with full
Teacher’s Pay and Conditions document and mdependent commlssmned benchmarkmg '

The Chief Operating Officer pay |s set in line with Kent County Council's Support Staff Pay and Condltlons
The Chief Financial Officer pay is set in line with Kent County Council's S_Upport Staff Pay and Conditions.

The pay of all the Executnve head teacher and all primary headteachers is set in accordance with the Teacher’s -
Pay and Conditions document and the current size of their school in terms of pupil numbers.

The day-to-day implementation of the remuneratlon policy is delegated to the CEO and momtored by the’ Board

of Trustees. All details for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel are set out in the pay
policy and appralsal policy which are rewewed regularly by the Board.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Senior management salaries are linked to pay ranges, helping Trustees monitor that each individual is
remunerated at an appropriate level. As such, salaries are linked to factors such as length of service and
- experience. Total remuneratlon packages mclude employer pension contnbutlon rates at specific approved
.rates.

The board always bears in mind the charitable status of the trust and recognises that the trust receives monies
‘under a funding agreement with.the Secretary of State for Education and, therefore, ensures the remuneration
paid to senior management personnel never exceeds a reasonable amount that provides value for money to the
trust. The performance of senior management personnel is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure continuing
value for money.

Total remuneration paid to senior management personnel is set out'in note 13.
Trade union facility time
Under the provisions of the Trade Union Regulations 2017, where an academy trust has more than 49 full time
equivalent’ employees throughout the period 1st April 2022 to the end of the period 31st March 2023, it must

publish the following information.

.Relevant Union Officials

Number of employees who were relevant union | Full-ime equivalent employee number
officials during the relevant pericd :

0 ' 0

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees
0% 0
1%-50% 0
51%-99% 0
100% - - 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time 0 A

Total pay bill £9,697 811

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time 0%:-

" Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union actvities as a| 0
percentage of total paid facility hours.

Risk Management

The trustees have revuewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating, fmanmal
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Trustees are of the view that
“there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the academy trusts’ S|gn|f icant risks
and the business continuity plans for each academy are in place and are regularly reviewed.

-
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

‘There are no related parties which elther control or significantly mfluence the decisions and operations of the
Trust.

As a Church MAT, i.e., with Church of England schools the Trust has a legal relationship with the Diocesan
Board of Education (DBE). This is governed by the Articles of Association and a Memorandum of Understandlng
between the Trust and the DBE. .

Engagement with -employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust engages with its employees continuously and in a number of ways to suit their different working
patterns. This includes regular Trust leadership meetings, Trust Head Teacher meetings, line manager
meetings, an appraisal process and emphasis on coaching, including a minimum of f|ve staff training days each
academic year and a termly staff newsletter.

The Trust has in place a Trade Union Facilities Agreement which sets out arrangements for formal consultation
on matters relating to employees. Termly Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) meetings are attended by'
representatives from the Trades Unlons recognised by the Trust.

The Trust has a policy of equallty of opportunity for all appllcants and employees durmg the course of -
employment and supports weIIbelng initiatives.

Engagement with suppliers, customers, and others in a business relationship with the Trust

Our Community Multi Academy Trust has engaged with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders. It has
adopted a fair procurement process and engaged with both local and national suppliers to develop mutually
beneficial business relationships.

Objective§ and Activities
Objects and Aims

The Trust Charitable objects as set out in its articles of association are:

. to advance the .public benefit education in the United Kingdom, but without prejudice to the generality of
the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing, and developing Academies which shall
offer a broad and balanced curriculum, and which shall include:

. Church of England Academies designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices, and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in relation to arranging
for religious education and daily acts of worship, and having regard to any advice issued by the

~ Diocesan Board of Education; and
. Other Academles whether with or without a desngnated religious character

In accordance wuth the articles of association, the Our Community Multi Academy Trust has adopted a “Scheme
of Governance” approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Governance specifies,
amongst other things, the basis for admitting pupils to the academies, the catchment area from which the pupils
are drawn, and that the curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ feport (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

It is Our Community Multi Academy Trust ethos to work collectively with colleagues across the Trust, to share
good practice and to enable teachers and leaders to develop practice enshrined in quality research to enhance
the life chances of every pupil. Where required in line with government guidance we have continued to provide
support in respect of the online learning platform available to our communities and school meal vouchers when
directed by the government.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Trust Strategic and Operational Plan Key Priorities 2023/24

High quall'ty and School Finance and Governance and
Inclusive Improvement Workforce Operations Leadershi
Education P P P

All leaders to Priority schools | Allemployees are | Balance budget | Accountability of

ensure school continue to effectively line ensuring efficient | agreed priorities
staff know their demonstrate managed to and effective to be driven
role in creating sustainable maintain high staffing resources through line
inclusive, improvement performance and management by
motivating, particularly in the | retention across Financial data is | the CEQ using the
ambitious Quality of the Trust. available for Trust Leadership
| environments for Education. effective decision Principles
all pupils. Create a making
Trust church supportive Governance
Aligning whole schools live up to working Develop capital structures
school their foundations | environment by strategy within reviewed for
fundamentals of as 3 church managing senior budgetary greater challenge
strong SEND and | school, enabling | leaders’ workload constraints. of leadership
inclusive practice. | pupils and adults [ and prioritising teams.
to flourish. well-being.
To enhance the Alonger term (3-
quality of Outcomes are at S5 year plan) is
education by least in line with developed to
upskilling staff on National or demonstrate
complex pupil above. future growth
needs and and financial
ensuring sustainability.
consistent
approaches
across the Trust,
resulting in
improved
outcomes for
pupils with SEND.
These will be achieved by:
. Weekly Trust Executive Meetings focused on RAG rating progress on strategy to meet ob)ectlves
« . Regular scrutiny of plan through Trust Board and Committee meetings
. Financial monitoring meetings with Head Teachers and Trust chair regularly timetabled

Public Benefit
The Trustees have regard to the Charity Commissions guidance on Public Benefit Section 4 of the Charities Act

2011 and in setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charlty
Commlssmners general guidance on public benefit.
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" Our Community Multi Acad.emy Trust
~ (A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (centinued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Equal opportunities Policy

The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities are an integral part of good practice within the workplace. The
Trust'aims to establish equal opportunities in all areas of its activities including creatlng a working environment in
_ which the contnbutron and needs of all people are fully valued )

Strategic Report ..
Achievements and Performance .

"This was the first year since the pandemlc that schools took part on the national tests. An overview of the key
.performance indicators for the schools: :

Ofsted Outcomes: e . E : -
The current Ofsted judgements tor the 10 schools within the Multi Academy Trust are as follows:

Borden CEP: Requires Improvement (June 2022) . .
Bredgar CEP: Good (January 2022)
The Oaks Infants: Good (November 2021)
Minterne Junior School: Good (October 2021)
Lynsted & Norton Prlmary School: Requires Improvement (March 2023) (Prewously Inadequate May
2021) :
- Milstead & Frinsted Church of England Primary School: Requires Improvement (November 2022)
Selling Church of England Primary School: Good (November 2021) '
Petham Primary School: Good (July 2019) '
Dymchurch Primary School: Requires Improvement (Apnl 2022)
Lydd Primary School Good (March 2018)

- e e 8 e e

" The current SIAMS judgements for the Church Schools are:

Borden CEP: Outstanding (2019)

Bredgar CEP: Outstanding (2019)

Selling CEP : Good (October 2016)

Milstead and Frinsted CEP: Good (June 2018)

~SATs Outcomes

Thls is the first year since the pandemic that KS2 SATs data has been pubhshed The Trust's summary data is
as follows: . ,
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Our Community Multi Acadenty Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Trust Headlines
KS1 Overall Trust Reading ‘Writing Maths
| outcomes <
202212023 | B4% EXP 62% EXP B6% EXP4
. 13% GD 5% GD 6% GDS
2012022 | STHEXP+ | 45% EXP+ 54% EXP+
S 11% GDS 4% GDS 7% GDS
KS2 Overall Trust Reading Wiiting ‘Maths
outcomes - L
202212023 F2% EXP F5% EXPy F‘{% EXP
: D%% GD 12% GD 9% GD
202412022 52% EXP+ 57% EXP+ 4% EXP+
17% GDS 8% GDS 16% GDS

in all areas across KS1 and KS2 as a Trust a greater % of our pupils are achieving the expected and greater

depth standard in comparison to last year's outcomes. One of our key priorities in 2022/2023 was a focus on

writing with our seasonal visits in the spring capturing and advising on.this subject. Alongside the development of

our moderation and writing exemplification materials this supports the positive impact of the work invested in our

schools.

The schools’ performance is regularly reviewed and scrutinized through Seasonal visits carried out by the
Standards Team and through Standards Committee meetlngs

By the end of KS2 the following was achleved by schools in the Trust:
Reading: 5 out of 9 schools at national or above '

Writing: 7 out of 9 schools at national or above -

Maths: 4 out of 9 schools at national or above

GPS: 5 out of 9 schools at.national or above _

Combined (RWM): 3 out of 9 schools at national or above

Financial outcomes for the Trust:

The trustees agreed that the following indicators Would be applied to the performance of all ten schools from the
1 September 2022. The following are key performance indicators for the Trust for 2022/2023:

. Percentage of income received from ESFA spent on teaching staff: For 2022/2023 the target was 45%-
49%, and 44% was achieved.

. . Percentage of income received from Government spent on total staff costs. For 2022/2023 the target was
75% to 78%, and 89% was achieved.

. Pupil numbers (leading directly to ESFA funding Ievel For 2022/2023 the target was 1820, and 1677 was

" achieved (excludes SRP and Nursenes)

. General funding expenditure — aim for income to match expendlture each year. For 2022/2023 the target

was £479,834 roll forward and £203,007 was achieved (budgeted roll forward was £256,243).

It was planned to change the performance indicators in 2022/2023 but due to trust capacity this was delayed.
New KPIs have been identified as part of the Trust Strategic and Operational Plan Key Priorities 2023/24.

Page 10 .



Our Community Multi Academy Trust:
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Going Concern

During 2022/23 work was undertaken to improve the monthly monitoring reports such that they more readily
identified the underlying trends for the projection for the year end. This also identified that a key focus for
2023/24 was the management of the finances in the schools and more regular meetings with: Headteachers,
- including improved reports to assess impact of proposed decisions on future years projections.

The Trustees were concerned that the reducing surpluses over the last few years needed to be addressed ‘and
this was included in the operational and strategic plan for 2023/24. Based on the assumptions within the
2023/24 three year budget submission and the proposed actions the trustees have a reasonable expectation of
being a going concern at the adoptlon of these accounts.

Promoting the Success of the Company

2022/23 saw the Trust start wuth several new Headteachers who have worked hard to develop good working
relationships with their staff and the local community. All schools in the Trust have been looking at how best to
support pupils and parents in these very difficult economic times. Local initiatives such as liasing with other
companies/councils in providing grants to enable material support those in need, to assisting with foodbanks.

The work on'standards has enabled the trust to support all the schools across the trust in collaborative working
to improve educational standards and share best practice. Our strategic and operational plan for 2023/24 further
builds on this success and looks to incorporate achievements with financial propriety..

Whilst the trust is nbt actively Iooklng to grow, it is open to possibilities as it sees the economies of scale that
"could be obtained. The Trust also has the benefit of a very strong focused Standards team that could support
the inclusion of new schools. - .

Financial Review
Financial Report for the year

As previously covered, the trustees were concerned that the surpluses were continuing to reduce whilst the
funding for schools was not increasing at the same rate as costs, such as the significant increase in the National
Living Wage from April 2023. 2022/23 again saw one-off costs which the Trust should be in the posntlon to avoid
going forward.

An improved monitoring report had reduced time spent by the finance team in pulling together data and made
the data easier to understand. During the year, the current CFO confirmed their intention to retire, and a
Business Support Team restructure was proposed to be effectlve from 1st September 2023. The COO took the
-deC|S|on to Ieave under this restructure.

The schools continued to look to ensure any restricted grants such as those related to Pupil Premium and Sports
Grant are used in line with government guidelines. In preparing the three- -year budget for 2023/24, the trustees
asked that based on the reducing anticipated pupil numbers. that this be reflected in the pro;ecllons and
proposals for balanced budgets gomg forward. ‘

The Trust also had the visit of a SMRA which was very useful in confirming the issues that had. been |dent|f ed
from the monitoring and the development of Key Performance Indicators to use in informing decision making. A
follow up meeting with the ESFA is proposed for November to include an update on the three year submitted
budget.

During the period ended 31 August 2023 the total revenue expenditure was £1 1,985,899 and total incoming
funds from the ESFA and other sources was £11,921,476. :

At the 31 August 2023, the net book value of tangible fixed assets was £12,514,548. The assets were used
_excluswely for providing education and associated support services to the pupils of the Trust.
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Our Community Multi Aeademy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

' Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

* The Trust held fund balances on 31 August 2023 of £13,244,922, comprising £13 081,670 of restricted funds .
“and £163,252 of unrestricted funds.

The trust is left with a cumulative revenue reserve of £203k to carry forward into 2023/24. The budget for
2023/2024 will continue to require constant management. We have. stringent plans in place for the budget in
2023/2024 and the trustees are looking to ensure that the pro;ected deficit in year three is turned around.

‘Three of the academies and the central fund were in an overall deficit position as 31 August 2023, and the
reasons for this and the actions being taken to rectify the situation are disclosed in note 19.

In addition to the revenue funds the trust has restricted fixed asset funds of £13,041,915 at'the year end, much
of this relates to the value of the school buildings which are carried on the balance sheet. :

4 Full details are shown in note 15 to the financial statements. The assets were used almost exclusrvely for
providing educatuon and the associated support services to the puplls of the trust's academles

Reserves Pollcy

The Trustees review the reserve Ievels of the Our Community Multi Academy Trust annually.

This réview encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with
commitments and the nature of the reserves. The Trustees have determined that the approximate level of free
reserves should be equivalent of 10 week’s expenditures, currently around £2m. The OCMAT current level of -
reserves is £203,007 (total funds less amount held in fixed assets and pension reserve).

The Trust's defined pension scheme is in surplus (see note 26).

Investment Policy

Under the Articles of Association, the Our Community Multi Academy Trust has the power to mvest funds not
‘immediately required for its own purpose, in any way the Trustees seé fit.

The Trust does not currently hold any investments other th‘an its' positive cash and £106k in a Deposit Account.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Under the Business Support Team restructure, whilst looking to develop an overall estate strategy based on full
building reports previously organised, the new Services Manager investigated the risk of RAAC on the trusts
buildings. The trust can confirm that none of the buildings are impacted by RAAC. However, it has become
obvious that asbestos does have a bigger |mpact than previously understood and recorded from recent CIF
work.

The Trustees consider the fmancral risk to the trust to be of concern such that- activities proposed in the
operational and strategic plan for 2023/24 reflect:

. The need for regular and close monitoring, particularly with those schools at risk of other factors, eg:
* Standards, Pupil numbers, Financial Deficits.
. Close monitoring of cash flow, to ensure sufficient funds to deliver services to the appropriate level.

. Corporate Governance - risk of failure in the mechanlsms policies; and processes which direct and
control the Trust. .

Page 12



‘ " Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

The.Trust appointed a new.DPO service in June 2023 -and a new IT company with effect from 1st September
2023. This is to start the process to ensure the trust can meet the risks from: - .

+ - [T breaches resulting in confrdentral data theft or corruptron

_* . Material event occurs within one of the schools that compromises puprl staff or public safety eg.
‘safeguarding, physical safety of pupils, terror-related incident, fire, flood etc.

Fundraising

Fundraising takes place at local school level and the schools. are very grateful for the support local charities
provide in enriching the pupils wider experrence .

Parent Support groups also hold events during the academic year; and this has a posrtrve impact on providing
.items that school budgets cannot always stretch too .

.Streamlrned Energy and Carbon Reportrng.

' Currently our Trust does not meet the criteria within the guidance and theréfore we do not need to respond to
this statement. However, as a Trust we regular review our energy consumption and re implementing energy
efficiency measures to reduce our carbon footprint. : .

" Plans for Future Perrods

The Trust has a Strategic and Operational Plan for 2‘023/24 based around five pillars (see earlier section
Objectives; Strategies and Activities). - ' o

These actions are cemented by regular operational executive team meetrngs to ensure that.actions are cohesrve
' and supportive of the overall objectrves and that i |ssues are |dent|t“ ed before |mp|ementatron '

Ongomg development of processes to rmprove data available for decrsron making and the involvement of
Headteachers in understandlng the impact of actions not just immediately but into the future years.

To understand the Unlque Sellrng Point of each of our schools to ensure that our schoo|s attract pupil numbers
that will continue to provide a sustarnable future for our schools and Trust. .

The -culture of our Trust is one of openness ‘both senior staff and teaching staff are clear about the need to
collaborate and commit to their own professmnal development. -

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behaif of others

The Trust is not actino as a ‘custodian trustee' for any charity for the ye'arAending 31st August 2023.
Ftoliticaldonations | -

The Trust made no political donations for the year ending 31st August 2023.

Provision of information to auditor ,

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

. The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any:
relevant audrt mformatron and to establish that the auditor is aware of that mformatlon
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Auditor

The auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP, was re-appointed in 2021 as part of an open tender process, in line with the
Academies Trust Handbook 2022. Due to the current CFO retiring and the appointment of a new CFO, Kreston
Reeves have been asked to roll-over the two year contract for an additional year to cover 2023/24 to allow time
for the new CFO to carry out a new tender process.
The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 12 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by: .

Mike O'Connell
Chair of Trustees
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Our Community Multi Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
_deS|gned to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can prowde only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guldance in DfE’s Govemance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to. it in the funding
agreement between Our Community Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are
also responsible for reportmg to the Board of Trustees any materlal weaknesses ‘or breakdowns in internal
control.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarartee)

Governance Statement (continued)

‘Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year. .

A

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee . : ' - Meetings attended . - Out of a possible

- Helen Stewart, Chair 3
- Michael O'Connell, Chair
David Whitehead, Accounting officer -
Simmone Haywood
lan Hamilton
tan Chappell

Jonathan Uttley

OONONNN
NNNNNN

The Chair of Trustees resigned in March and a new Chair was elected by the Trustees. The Board has seen the
improvement of financial data but is looking for further improvements in 2023/24 to ensure changes are reflected
notjust in the current year but forward into a roIIing 3/5 year plan.

A change in committees from 2023/24 will see a separate Audit & Risk Committee set up to monitor the overall
‘performance of the Trust in terms of governance.

Each academy within the Trust has a Local Monitoring Council Body which reports into the board of Trustees on:
local matters and ensures appropriate stakeholder representation. The Local Monitoring Council of each
academy is specifically responsible for monitoring the standards at each school, and the effective use of Pupil
Premium and Sports Premium funding. 4

Conflicts of interest:

The academy has a register of interests and asks each committee/board member to declare any new interests at
the start of each meeting. If it is known that a member of staff has a potential conflict of interest, the decision
regarding procurement is passed to ancther senior member of the executive team. : :
Governance reviews . : - o : Cy
In November 2021, at the Trust Board Strategic Day the self-assessment questlonnalre was rewewed

Due to changes in board members in 2022/23 the opportunity to review governance is planned for completion to
be covered in the Directors’ Strateglc Day in 2023/24
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)
Governance (continued)

The Audit, Finance and Staffing‘Committee

This is a sub committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to review and approve all matters relating
to Audit, Finance and Staffing. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Trustees for approval
as set out in its Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation. A key purpose is to ensure a comprehensive
review of risks to which the Trust is exposed and make recommendations and to ensure there is a robust system
of internal controls. This committee also serves as the Trust's audit committee,-as the Trust is not required to
have a dedicated audit committee. A qualified accountant is Chair of the Committee.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Audit, Finance & Staffing Committee was as follows:

Trustee ‘ . | Meetings attended Out of a possible

David Whitehead, Chief Executive Officer
lan Hamilton, Chair

lan Chappell

Simmone Haywood

Y- WX
cooo

" Review of value for money

The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the period from the
1st September 2022 to 31st August 2023 by:

Estates:

Having Building Condition Surveys and Net Zero Carbon Surveys for each of the Trust's sites to develop estates
strategy and look to use the Energy Efficiency Grant to its best impact. This was procured by the Trust with
quotes and examples of reports obtained before decision on best company vs value for money.

On-going purchasing:
Continued amalgamation of contracts from the merger of the two trusts to a single end date and |mprove the
discounts given eg Renaissance Learning

New contracts:. :
Following a procurement process, cost effective contracts negotiated for DPO services and IT Support.

Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level! rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control in our trust is based on an on-going process designed
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively, and economically. The Trust's Risk Register is reviewed and managed on a regular basis
by the Trust-Board and its Committees. The Trust's Policies and Procedures are reviewed and updated
according to an agreed tlmetable which ensures that the Trust manages its system of internal control
appropriately. .

The system of internal control has been in place in Our Community Multi Academy Trust for the year from the 1st

September 2022 to the period end of 31st August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)"

Governance Statement (continued)

Capecity to Handle Risk’

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the Trust's
significant risks that has been in place for the year from the 1st September 2022 to the period end of 31st August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly
reviewed (Risk Register) by the Board of Trustees. - - '

The Risk and Control Framework
" The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management |nformat|on and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegatlon and accountability. It

. mcludes

. Comprehenswe budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget ‘and perlodlc fi nanC|a| reports

which are réviewed and agreed by the governing body.

. Regular reviews by the Audit, Finance and Staffing Committee of reports which indicate financial

' performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capltal works and expendlture ‘
programmes.

. Setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) gundellnes (Trust Financial
Regulations)

. Delegation of authority and segregation of duties; (Trust Financial Regulation 2021)

. Identification and management of rlsks (Trust Risk Register and Risk Management Policy)

The Board of Trustees considered the need for a specific mternal audit function and re-appointed SBM Services
Ltd following an opéen tender process in 2021 for a two-year period, therefore SBM Services were appointed as
internal auditors for the period 1st September 2022 to the period end\of 31st August 2023 Due to the change in -
CFO, SBM Services have been asked to extend contract to include 2023/24. X

The internal auditor’s role includes glvmg advice on financial matters and other matters and performing a range
of checks on the academy trust's ﬁnanmal systems and other systems. The agreed areas for internal audit for
2022/2023 were:

. Personal Policies and Governance

e Recruitment and Pre-employment Checks
+ . Payroll

The SBM Services Ltd internal audlt report for 2022/2023 for our Trust was submitted to the Trustees on 21

November 2023 and where recommendations were made, appropriate persons have been assigned to address
these récommendations and report back.to the internal auditor and the Trust's Audit, Finance and Staffing

Committee in 2023/2024. These recommendations will be followed up during the year 2023/24 and a report will
be made to the board of Trustees to confirm they have all been addressed properly.

[y
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Govefnance Statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief ‘Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness. 6f the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the external auditor.
the work of the internal auditor.

e o o o

‘internal control framework

the work of the SMRA and school resource management self-assessment tool
the work of the Chief Financial Officer who has responsibility for the development and maintenance of the

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit, Finance -and Staffing Committee and a plan to -ensure continuous improvement of the

system is in place.

Approved by order of the m'embers'of the Boafd of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Mike‘ O'Conneli

Chair of Trustees -
Date: 12 December 2023

David Whitehead
Accounting Officer
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of.ReguIarity, P’ro_priety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Our Community Multi Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, .
impropriety and non-compliance with terms- and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust. Handbook 2022,
including responsubllltles for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundlng under '
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no mstances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non- compllance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of -
Trustees and ESFA. N :

David Whitehead
Accounting Officer
Date: 12 December 2023
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust -
(A company limited by guarantee) '

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
for the year ended 31 August 2023

~ The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction’ published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
. the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its mcommg resources and application of resources,
including its income and expendlture for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
observe the methods and pnncmles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2022 to 2023;
. make judgments and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards havé been followed, subject to any material departures
- disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain:
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of.
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and .hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also respon5|ble for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended. .

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information -
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Mike O'Connell
Chair of Trustees
- Date: 12 December 2023
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) .

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Our Commumty Multi
~ Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Our Community. Multi Academy Trust (the 'academy trust’) for the
year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the-
Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom

Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Réporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities"

. SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Educatlon and Skills Fundlng
 Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

'3 have been properly prepared in -acc¢ordance with Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

_ Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis ot
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. ‘ :

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as

a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
- issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsnbllltles of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report. 4
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Our Community_M ulti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Our Community Multi
Academy Trust (continued)

‘Other information

- The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the.financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the

 extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other. information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to-be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strateglc report for the- fmancnal year for whlch
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
) the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with appllcable legal

‘requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowiedge and understanding of the academy trust and its environmient obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report. -

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation.to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: :

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or
e _ certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

) we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the -
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of fmanmal statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for-assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to Ilquudate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements.to the Members of Our Communlty Multi
Academy Trust (contmued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it -exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures -
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting lrregularltles including fraud is
detailed below:

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector as a whole, and through discussion with the
Trustees and other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and
employment law. We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation
of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies
Accounts Direction, Academies Trust Handbook, taxation and pension legislation. We communicated identified
laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout
the audit. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override ‘of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in accounting
estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and buildings and
revenue and noncompliance with financial management and governance requirements which are consistent with
the obligations of public funded bodies). Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

o’ Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations (including health and safety) and fraud, and review of the reports made by
management and internal audit; and

. Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and
. Identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud; and ' '
. Consideration of income streams; completeness of i income and compliance with the obligations of funders
including the ESFA -
.. Testing of internal controls procedures relating to expenditure potentially more susceptible to fraud and

other irregularities including the mlsuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and

. Challenging assumptlons and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates;
and

. Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships, including related
party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and

. Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to

identify any previously undisclosed transactlons with related parties outside the normal course of
business; and

. Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorities; and

. Review of corporate governance arrangements; and.

.. Review of significant and unusual transactions and evaluation of the underlying financial rationale
supporting the transactions; and

. Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any manual entries made at the year end
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Our Community Muliti
Academy Trust (continued) : :

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud |nvolves
intentional concealment, forgery, colluswn omission or misrepresentation. .

As part of an audlt in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professlonal Judgment and maintain professmnal
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: .

'Identlfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. )

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
of the academy trust's internal control. '

Evaluate the  appropriateness of accountmg pollcues used -and the reasonableness of . accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees. ‘

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ‘ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements' or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentatlon, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation. '

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sngmf icant deﬂcnenmes in internal control that we
identify during our audit. :
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Independent auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Our Community Multi
Academy Trust (continued) .

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in ah Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the -
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accepl or assume responsibilily to anyone other than the academy lrusl
and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. :

14(‘(”.5'\:@’\ e wverd Lo

Robert Sellers FCCA {Senior statutofy auditor)

for and on behalf of
Kreston Reeves LLP

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Canterbury
12 December 2023
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Our Community Muiti Acadermy Trust S
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reportmg Accountant’'s Assurance Report on Regularity to Our Commumty Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency .

In .acoordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 October 2023 and-further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Our Community Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August
- 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactlons conform to the
authorities which govern them . :

This report is made solely to Our Cormmunity Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
.engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Our Community Multi Academy
Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Our Community Multi Academy
Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report or for the conclusion we have formed. ;

,Respectlve responsubllltles of Our Commumty Multl Academy Trust's accountmg officer and the
_ reporting accountant

The accountlng officer is responsible, under the requirements of Our Community Multi Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 July 2017 and the Academy Trust Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and.income received is applied for the
purposes mtended by Parliament and the financial transactlons conform to the authorities Wthh govern them.

" Qur responsubllmes for this engagement. are established in the United Kungdom by. our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements .of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come

to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes -
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust ' .
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Our Community Multi Academy
Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain mformatuon and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basns of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure. 4

Work undertaken ‘
- The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- Reviewed the evidence used to support the Accounting Officer's sign off of the regularity statement

- Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the funding agr’eement '

- Reviewed that grants have been applied for the purposes intended

- Confirmed that internal control procedures eX|st relating to expenditure incurred of cash and credit

: cards

- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credlt cards are not for personal benefit

- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties

- Reviewed minutes of Trust Board minutes for declaration.of interests

- Reviewed Governance arrangements

- Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's charitable objects

- _ Considered if borrowing agreements, mcludlng leases, have been made in accordance with the
Academies Trust Handbook

- Confirmed that procurement and tenderlng procedures exist-relating to expenditure and have been
complied with.
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Our Community Multi Aeademy'Trust ,
' (A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reportlng Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Our Commumty Multi Academy '
Trust and the Educatlon & Skills Fundmg Agency (contmued)

Conclusion

"

In the course -of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects:the
_expendituré- disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been -
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

1,4.( CJ‘:Q/\ e ved P

: Kreston Reeves LLP

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants -
Canterbury

. Date: 12 December 2023

Page 29



Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income_énd expenditure account)

for the year ended 31 August 2023

forward

- . Restricted - : o
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total . - Total’
funds funds funds funds funds
~ 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
Note . £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital . : .
grants 3 57,436 - 662,056 719,492 1,392,058
Other trading activites =~ 5 21 7,603 - ’ - 217,603 166,169
Investments © 6 781 - - 781 118
Charitable activities 4 - 10,891,018 - 10,891,018 ' 10,404,875
Other income 7 92,892 - - 92,892 71,114
Total income 368,712 - 10,891,018 662,056 11,,921,786 12,034,334
Expendituré on: . V . .
Charitable activities 8 139,195 11,623,887 223,127 11,986,209 12,289,786
_Total expenditure 139,195 11,623,887 223127 11,986,209 12,289,786
~ Net
income/(expenditur ) : :
e) o . - 229,517 (732,869) 438,929 . (64,423) , (255,452)
Transfers between o
funds ) . 19 (377,066) ‘377,066 - - -
Net movementin -
funds before other
recognised ' - :
gains/(losses). (147,549) (355,803) 438,929 (64,423) (255,452)
Other recognised A ' )
gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit .y : .
- pension schemes 26 - 1,220,000 - 1,220,000 7,432,000
Net movement in ' : : ' :
funds - (147,549) 864,197 438,929 1,155,577 7,176,548
Reconciliation of
funds:
" Total funds brought ‘ :
forward 310,801 (824,442) 12,602,986 12,089,345 4,912,797
Net movement in funds (147,549) 864,197 438,929 . 1,155,577 7,176,548
Total funds carried ' . _ -
163,252 - 39,755 13,041,915 13,244,922 12,089,345

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
The notes on pages 34 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust

(A company Iiniited by guarantee)
" Registered number: 10842747

Balance sheet .
as at 31 August 2023

Nofe

Fixed assets A

‘Tangible assets . . : ' 15
Currentassets )

" Debtors 16
Cash at bank and in hand

- Creditors: amounts falling due within one .

- year ) » . 17 .

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
- than one year o 18
Net assets excluding pension asset/ -
liability : o

Defined benefit pension scheme asset /

liability 26

Total net assets -

Funds of the academy trust

Restricted funds: .

Fixed asset fuids - = | 19
"Restricted income funds : 19
-Resfricted funds excluding pension asse:t‘ 19

Pension reserve’ 19
Total restricted funds ' 19

Unrestricted income funds - B 19 -

Total funds

2023
12,515,548
12,515,548
1,071,808
941,090
2,012,898
" (1,152,143)
860,755
13,376,303 -
(131,381)
13,244,922
13,244,922
13,041,915
39,755
. 13,081,670
13,081,670
163,252 -
13,244,922
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2022

£

11,499,409

11,499,409
1,746,696
/980,359
2,727,055
(1,055,269)

: . /

1,671,786

13,171,195

(71,850)

- 13,099,345

(1,010,000)

12,089,345
12,602,986
185,558
12,788,544
(1,010,000)

11,778,544

310,801 -

12,089,345 -



Our Community Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 10842747

Balance sheet (eontinued)
as at 31 August 2023

The financial statements on pages 30 to 66 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 12"
December 2023 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Mike O'Connell
Chair of Trustees

The notes 'en pages 34 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of cash flows .
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows from opefaﬁng activities

Net cash provided ~by/(.usAed in) éperating activities
Cash flows from ir‘westing- activities

Cash flowsl from finanﬁng activities

Change in cash and éash equi{valients in the Year
Cash arid' cash equiValéﬁts at the beginning‘of the 'yee.)‘r

~Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 34 to 66 form part of these financial statements

7
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: :Note .

21
23

22

- 24,25

2023 12022
£.

448474 (879270)

' (550,087) 160,5_3‘5

. 62;343- (8855

(39,27’0) k720,ozo)

980,360 1,700,380

941,000

980,360



Our Community Multi Academy Trtlst
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

Accounting policies

11

1.2

Our Community Multi Academy'Trust is a charitable company limited by guatantee and an exempt
charity incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Lynsted & Norton Primary School,
Lynsted Lane, Lynsted, Sittingbourne, United Kingdom, MES ORL. The principal activity of the

" academy trust is to provide education for pupils that satisfies the requirements of the Educatlon Act

2002.

A summary of the principal accoﬁnting pblicies adopted (which ‘have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements ‘

The financial statements of the academy trust which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in"accordance with the Financial Reporting

-Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by

Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102)-(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA,
the Charltles Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006.

Our Communlty Multl Academy Trust meets the deflnltlon of a public benef t entlty under FRS 102.
. The academy trust's functional and presentatlonal currency is Pounds Sterling.

- The academy trust's financial statements are presented to the nearest pound.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether-the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any .
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. -

‘During 2022/23 work was undertaken to improve the monthly mbn'ltoring reports to more easily

. identify the underlying trends. The Trustees were concerned that the reducing surpluses over the last

few years needed to be addressed and in preparing the three year budget recognised that whilst a
deficit budget was belng submitted, there were planned actions that would potentially redress this and
work towards buuldlng a trust surplus.-

2022/23 also included some one-off costs which are not anticipated go,i'ng forward.

. Following the SRMA visit a meeting took place with the ESFA involving the Cheif, CEO and CFO and

discussions included the deficit against one- of the schools (Lynsted) with further details to be put

_forward, and that an updated budget would be shared whlch reflected a more positive expected

outcome.

The academy was pleased that the UK Government's response to the teachers pay award did-result
in extra funding to cover this cost, however, the |mpact of the increases in National L|V|ng Wage has
put extra stress on resourcmg costs.

Based on the assumptions and activities planned in relation to finance in the 2023/24 operational and
strategic plan, the Trustees have a reasonable expectatlon of being a going concern at the adoptlon

“of these accounts.

' /
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Our Community Muiti Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

Accounting policies (continhed)-

13

Income

AII |ncom|ng resources .are recognlsed when the academy trust has entitement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount.can be measured reliably. .

Grants - - g \

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a recelvable basis. The .balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-

' related conditions there is not unconditional entitement to the income and its recognition is.deferred

and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income |s accrued

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which

- itis receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

1.4

15

a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital .
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donatlons

Donations are recognrsed ona recervable basis (where there are no performance related conditions)’
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, mcIudmg the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is recelvable and to the extent -
the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

‘Expenditure is recegnised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit

to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are' made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly -
to. that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges aIIocated on the portion of the asset s use.

‘Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operatlons including support costs and R
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable
Interest -on funds held .on deposn is included when receivable and the amount can be measured

reliably by the academy trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest pald or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial Statements

1.

1.6

1.7

" for the year ended 31 August 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pasé tHe tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains .
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. ’

Tangible fixed assets

. Assets costing £1 000 or more are capitalised as tanglble fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of :

depreciation and any provusmn for impairment.

'Premises occupied under a licence by church academies

The Canterbury Diocesan Board of Education own the legal titles of land and freehold property for the
church academies the trust operate. In these circumstances, the Academy Trust's rights over the
premises does not meet the definition of an asset as the Academy Trust does not have control over
the premises. Accordingly the academy trust does not recognise these premises as a fixed asset on
its balance sheet. There are no formal leases in place and the Canterbury Diocesan Board of
Education do not charge any rent for the use of these properties.

' Premises leased from local authorities

Land, buildings and playing fields occupied under 125 year, leases from a-local authority are
recognised as a fixed asset in the academy trust balance sheet at fair value. :

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets’is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is'provided on all tangible fi xed assets other than freehold land and assets under

construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a stralght-llne basus over its.
expected useful life, as foIIows .
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. Our Community Multi Academy Trust A'
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line - s
Long-term leasehold land - - Not depreciated ' :
Long-term leasehold - - 2% straight line
improvements _ o
- Fixtures and fittings and - 25% straight line
computers ' ' :
Motor vehicles : - 20% straight line

\

Assets in the course of constructlon are included at cost Deprecuatlon on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to long-term leasehold |mprovements

"A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying value. of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets.and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities rncorporatmg income and expenditure
account

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term hlghly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.10 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provude .

Provisions are recognlsed when the Academy Trust has an obltgation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably. '

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements

1.

for the year ended 31 August 2023
- Accounting policies (continuéd)

1.11 Financial instruments

- The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial .instruments.
Amounts due to the academy trust's wholly owned subspdlary are held at face value-less any
impairment.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

‘Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security are not .

included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be'a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the academy trust's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. .

'1.12 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of f nancial actmtues on a straight
line basns over the lease term.

1.13 Pensmns

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension

Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes. ' A

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is
a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations usmg a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme: for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair

“value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and

discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the-actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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" Our Communlty Multi Academy Trust '
(A company limited by guarantee)

~Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)‘

, 1.14 Fund accoimting

" Unrestricted income funds represent those resources whlch may be used towards meetlng any of the
-charltable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restrlcted fixed asset funds are resources whlch are to be applied to specific capltal purposes ’
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose :

Restricted general funds comprise. aII other restrlcted funds received with restrictions |mposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group .

Page 39 -



Our Comniunity Multi Academy Trust \

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

2.

Crltlcal accountlng estimates and areas of judgment

" Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and-are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectatlons of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions: -

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension ‘Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward. approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Tangible fixed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value .of £12,515,548 at the
reporting date (see note 15). These assets are stated-at their cost less provision for depreciation and .
impairment. The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation from
immaterial assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust determines
at acquisition reliable estimates for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and decommissioning
costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the acquiréed asset and

* market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the governors consider whether there are any factors

such as technological advancements or changes in market conditions that indicate -a need to reconsider
the estimates used. ,

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be.impaired the Academy Trust
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair
value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value -
of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow mode!, based upon the Academy Trust's
forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy
Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. '
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Our Cor’ﬁmun_iiy Multi Academy Trust

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
" for the year ended 31 August 2023 .

2.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

o ‘Cr’itic_al areas of judg'mentA:

Lease commitments

. The Academy- Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of property, plant and

equipment. The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the
governors to consider whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust
has acquired the risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme ~ B
Certain employees participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other Academy _
Trusts in the region. In the judgement of the governors, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient
information on.the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined

benefit obligation and plan assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution - .
] scheme see note 25 for further detalls

Local Government Pension Scheme Liability:

" The plan surplus as at 31 August 2023 was £232,000 (2022: liability £1,010,000). A pension plan asset is
recognised. to the extent that the academy trust is able to recover the surplus either through reduced
. contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. In the opinion of the trustees, the academy

trust will not recover the surplus through reduced ‘contributions and they do ‘not: anticipate receiving any
refunds from the plan and therefore the net surplus recognised within the financial statements has been
restricted to £NIL. .

Income from donations and capital grants

. Restficted

Unrestncted .fixed asset ‘Total ' Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 - 2022

4 ' . . £ : £ S A £
Donations ' 57,436 . - 57,436 . 59,710
Capital Grants : - ‘ - 662,056 662,056 1,332,348
Totel 2023 ‘ L 57,436 - ' 662,056 719,492 1,392,058

Total 2022 ‘ o ‘59,710 1,332,348 1,392,058
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Our Community Muiti Academy Trust
. (A company limited by guarantee)

- Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

4. Funding for the company's direct costs

DfE/ESFA grants ,
4 General Annual Grant (GAG). .
"+ Other DfE/ESFA grants
'Oiher DfE/ESFA grants -

Other Government grants
Local Authority Grants

Total 2022

5.  Other trading activities

Clubs and nursery
Catering income
Trip income

Hire of facilities
Incorﬁe fundraising

Total 2022 -
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Restricted

Total

s

Total
funds funds funds’
2023 2023 2022

£ £ £
7,973,445 7,973,445  7,820723 .
1428248 1,428,248 1,102,411
- 9,401,693 8,923,134
1,489,325 1,489,325 . 1481741
1,489,325 1,489,325 1,481,741 .
10,891,018 10,891,018 10,404,875
10,404,875 10,404,875
Unrestricted Total _Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022 -
£ g
108,649 108,649 86,151
. 877 877 -
91,823 91,823 71,286
5,000 5,000 5,881
11,254 11,254 2,851
217,603 217,603 166,169
166,169 166,169



Our Community Mulfi Academy T;;ust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

6. Investmentincome’

Bank interest - '
Total 2022

7.  Other incoming resources.

t

Sale of goods and services
~ Other incoming resources
"RPAclaim C
“Rental income

Total 2023

Total 2022 .

8..  Expenditure

Educational operations

 Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Total 2022

Unrestricted . ° Total

- Total
funds - funds funds " -
2023 2023 2022
- £ - £ £
781 L8 118
18 . 118
Unrestricted Total Total
. funds " funds funds
' 2023 2023 2022
£. £ £
58,427 58,427 . 44,745
26,687 26,687 22,867
7,378 - 7,378 3,502
400 400 -
92,802 92,892 71,114
71,114 - 71,114
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2023 2023 - 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ 2 £
7,815,739 - 728,839 8,544,578 7,974,096
. 1,882,072 437,995 1,121,564 3,441,631 4,315,690
9,697,811 - 437,995 1,850,403 11,986,209 .12',289,786
9,946,156 347',427. 1,996,203 12,289,786 o

Page 43



Our Community Multi Academy Trust
. (A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

-9,

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Expenditure

Total 2022

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Staff development . .
Educational supplies

Total 2022

Activities

7,974,096
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~undertaken - Support Total Total
directly ~ costs funds funds.
2023 - 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
- 8,544,578 3,441,631 11,986,2_09 v12,289,7-86
’ 7,974,096 14,315,690 12,289,786 _
Educational Total Total
Operations funds funds
2023 2023. - 2022
£ £ £
7,815,739 7,815,739 7,300,537 -
- 88,841 88,841 - 75,922
639,998 . 639,998. 597,637
.. 8,544,578 8,544,578 7,974,096
7,974,096



Our Community Multi Academy Trust '

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements.

for the year ended 31 August 2023

9.

10.

Analysis of expenditure by acfivities (contihued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension ﬁnancé costs
Staff costs

" ‘Depreciation
" Grounds maintenance

Cleaning -

Water .t
Energy -
Other occupancy

ICT curriculum

Catering '

Professional fees

Equipment and services

Repairs and maintenance

-Audit and accountancy fees
Rates o

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the yeér includes:

Dé}preciatioh of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- - audit

- other services
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£

Educational Total Total -
operations funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ 3
29,000 29,000 ‘ , 117,000
1,882,072 . 1,882,072 2,645,619
195222 ~ — 195,222 165,993
64,436 64,436 93,854
176,741 76,741 76,994
54,934 54,934 74,868
139,399 -~ . 139,399 . 173,422
92,745 92,745 80,249
61,259 61,259 61,819
325,692 325,692 241,335
'434,583 434,583 368,294
70,825 70,825 59,750
(50,543) (50,543) 64,155
31,500 131,500 60,255
33,766 33,766 . 32,083
3,441,631 . 3,441,631 4,315,690
2023 . 2022
_ £ £
- 195,222 165,993
' 24,500 23,000
2,500 2,500
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. Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

11.  Staff

-a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year. were as follows:

2023 2022

.- S £ ' £
Wages and salaries ' ' -~ . 7,054,070 6,766,578
~ Social security costs . o : 621,541 597,198

. Pension costs : ) : 1,781,336 2,441,418

9,456,947 9,805,194

Agency staff costs ' . Lo -106,008 140,962
Staff restructuring costs - C : 134856 = -

9,697,811 - 9,946,156

2023 2022

. . £ £ .
'Redundancy payments ' : 111,592 -
Severance payments . ‘ : _ 23,267 -

134,859 ]

b. Special staff severance payménts o
‘There were .payme"nts totalling £16,298 in contractual severance payments in the current period (2022:
£0). There were payments of £6, 969 in non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments in the current
year (2022 £22,067). Individually the payment was £23,267.
c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust durmg the year was as follows

2023 . . 2022

No. No.

Teachers SR 87 89
Administration and support . ' . . 246 - 256

Management - ‘ ' - 31 29

364 . 374
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,(A'comp'any limited by guarantee)‘

Notes tovthe financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

1.

- Staff (continued) f

d. Higher paid staff '

The number. of employees whose employee beneflts (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded
£60, 000 was:

2023 . 2022
No. ™~  No.
in'the band £60,001 - £70,000 / 2 2

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 . 3
In the band £80,001 - £80,000 : T
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 ' : 1 '

The above employees partlcvpated in'the Teachers Pensmn Scheme. Contribution dunng the year ended

31 August 2023 amounted to £110,705 (2022 £54 928)

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the -senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total salaries received by key management personnel for their
services to the Academy Trust was £1,663,334 (2022: £1,399,932). Employer pension contributions were.
a total of £367,248 (2022: £314,591) and employer national lnsurance contributions were a total of
£187,255 (2022: £160,005). : ,
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{A company limited by guarantee)

" Notes to the financial stateménts
for the year ended 31 August 2023

12. Central services

The academy trust has provided thé following central services to its academies during the year::

e .  Legal services and financial services
. Educational and support services

. Selected senior management salaries
e  Others as arising

The academy trust chargés for these services on the foIIoWing basis:
A flat percentage of approximately 4.0% General Annual Grant Income _
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

S £ £
Minterné Community Junior School ] ‘ ' 196,258 117,245
The Oaks Community Infant School . . 168,808 145,106
Bfedg'ar Church of England Primary School. ' 62,318 50,205
Borden Church of England Primary-School o : " 63,965 58,507
Lydd Primary School o ~ 137,843 130,916
Selling Church of England Primary School . : : : 67,275 61,669 -
Petham Primary-School ' ' ' 60,430 56,244,
" Milstead and Frinsted Church of-England 'Pi'imary School 55,641 50,060
Lynsted and Norton Primary School : 44,392 42,937
Dymchurch Primary School - - S : . 88995 83,370

CTotal . : | | 945925 796,259

Page 48



Our Community Multi Academy Trust
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

13.

~14.

Trustees remuneration and expenses '
Durmg the year no Trustees recelved any remuneratuon or other benef ts (2022 £NIL)

Durmg the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totallmg £38 were relmbursed to'1 Trustee (2022 -
£50). .

‘Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commermal practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £25,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for

- this insurance is included in the total insurance cost for the year ended 31 August 2023 of £29,740 (2022

- £39,575).
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Our Community Multi Acédemy Trust
- (A company limited by guarantee) : .

Notes to the financial statements .
for the year ended 31 August 2023 —

~15.  Tangible fixed assets

At 31 August 2022

- Long-term .
Long-term ! hold. Assets Furniture -
‘leasehold property under and ° Computer Motor
- . property improvements construction equipment - equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ ’ £ £ £ £
Cost or valuation T
At 1 September 2022 8,213,334 3,035,748 473,190 105,910 = .174,473 28,160 12,030,815
" Additions ' - 1,155,849 1,169,044 . 8,577 25,937 - 2,359,407
Transfers between classes - - (1,148,045) - - - (1,148,045)
At 31-August 2023 R - 8,213,334 4,191,597 494,189 114,487 200,410 . . 28,160 13,242,177
Depreciation o _ )
At 1 September 2022 323,944 . 51,512 - 59,870 83,772 12,309 531,407
Charge for the year 64,366 69,856 - ) 17,869 37,699 5,432 195,222
‘At 31 August 2023 388,310 121,368, - 77,739 121,471 17,741 726,629
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 7,825,024 4,070,229 494,189 36,748 . 78,939 10,419 12,51 5,548
7,889,390 2;984,236 473,190 46,040 90,702 15,851 1>1 ,499,409 )
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Notes to the financial statements - B .
for the year ended 31 August 2023 '

15.

16.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Included in land and buudlngs is long-term Ieasehold Iand at fair value of £4,992,543, which is not

- depreciated.

The Academy Trust's transactlons relating to land and bulldlngs mcluded

Long-term leasehold land and buildings comprises land and buildings occupied on 125 year leases
granted from Kent County Council to Potential in Everyone Academy Trust for the use of the sites at
Minterne Community Junior - School, The Oaks Community Infant School and a playmg field at Bredgar -
Church of England Primary School. .

.During the. year ended 31 August 2023, there aré assets under construction. This is in relation to fire

safety |mprovement and safeguarding works conducted, at the end of the school term that were st|II to be

_ ‘completed
Debtors -
I
2023. . 2022
£ - .
Due within one year A '
Trade debtors - 4 ' , : 21,923 6,048
Other debtors ‘ - B B " 300,028 593,482
. Prepayh\ents and accrued income B ‘ . 749,857 1,147,166

1,071,808 1,746,696
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~ Our Community Multi Academy Trust
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~ Notes to the financial statements |
for the year ended 31 August 2023 -

17.  Creditors: Amounts falling due witAhin one year

- 2023 - 2022
_ , £ - £
Other loans . ' : 11,577 8,765
Trade creditors . ) - : 34,779 - 230,536
Other taxation and social security . . ) , v 74,661 .
Other creditors ‘ . . - 323,741 370,687

_Accruals and deferred income - ‘ : ' o 707,385 445,281

-

- 1,152,143 1,055,269

b ' 5 S 12023 2022

. ) £ £

 Deferred income at 1 September 2022 S 117,135 133,137
‘Resources deferred during the year S - 116,237 117,135
Amounts released from previous periods o : ' (117,135) (133,137)

116,237 117,135 -

_At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds recelved in advance of the 2022/23
financial year in respect of free school meals and contributions towards trips and other activities.

+18.  Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

12023 2022 .

' | | _4 £ £
Other loans _ | © 7 131,381 71,850

The aggregate amount of llabllltIeS payable or repayable wholly or in part more than f ve years after the - -
‘reporting date |s :

2023 2022

£ . £

Payable or.repayable by instalmenié ' " .68,635 38,250
h 68,635 38,250

Included in other Ioans are Iong term CIF loans, at an interest rate of 1.95% from the ESFA in Borden
Bredgar and Oaks anary School, and 2. 07% in Mlnterne Primary School.
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19. Staiement;.of funds’ .

Balance at 1

. Balance at

.£" ‘

~ September : o : Transfers Gains/ 31 August
' 2022 . - Income Expenditure “infout (Losses) 2023
£ £ - £ BT £ :
Unrestricted - A
funds -~
. Genéral Funds - : : _ . . S .
all funds 310,801 368,712 (139,195) (377,066) - 163,252 .
- Restricted . ~ -
general funds
General Annual , o _ L :
~Grant (GAG) -(9,848) 7,976,435 '(8,604,106) - 558,468 - (79,051)
. .Other DfE/EFSA - _ T . . .
“grants - 195,406  1,427,937. (1,323,135) (181,402) - - 118,806
. Other ' : . = - '
Government . .
Grants g - - 1,486,646  (1,486,646) - .- -
Pension reserve  (1,010,000) - " (210,000) - 1,220,000 -
(824,442) 10,891,018 (11,623,887) 377,066 1,220,000 39,755
Restricted fixed N
asset funds
General fixed I v , o -
asset fund 11,499,407 - (195,222) 1,211,219 - 12,515,404
DfE/ESFA _ ' : B . ‘ . . :
Capital Grants 73,189 324,945 (27,905) (176,804) . - 193,425
Other Capital . ‘ _ o o '
Grants 1,030,390 337,111 - (1,034,415) - 333,086
12,602,986 662,056 (223,127) - - 13,041 ,915
.Total Restricted - - T : : ) o
funds - © 11,778,544 - 11,553,074 (11,847,014) 377,066 1,220,000  13,081,670
12,089,345 - i‘1,921,786 ('11,986,209)' ‘ - 1,220,000 13,244,922

. Total funds
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Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial Statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

19.

Statement of funds (continued)

The speeiﬂc purposes for wnich the funds are to be applied are as follows:

GAG represents funds to be used to cover the normal running. costs of the Academy Trust.
Other DfE/ESFA grants represents grants provided for speeific purposes such as pupil premium which is
used to support disadvantaged pupils and assist them in decreasing the attalnment gap between them

and their peers.

Other government grants represents grants provided for specrflc purposes, such as SEN funding which is
used to support pupils with special education needs . :

The restricted fixed asset fund represents the Iong term leasehold land and buildings and other assets
which were donated upon conversion to academy status, the value of fixed assets purchases since

~ conversion mcludrng depreciation to the balance sheet date.

© Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy-trust was not subject to a limit on

the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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Notes to the financial statements

~ 19,

_for the year ended 31 August 2023

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:
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Balance at : Balance at
1 September . Transfers Gains/ 31 August-
2021 Income Expenditure “infout (Losses) 2022
: £ £ - £ £ £ £
Unrestricted : - _
funds ‘ .
General Funds = 346,404 = 297,111 (1'10,677) (222,037) - 310,801
- Restricted
general funds
General Annual “ : .
Grant (GAG) = 399,301 7,844,145  (8,466,037) 212,743 - (9,848)
Other DfE/EFSA . C . ; '
grants . - 62,500 1,102,412 (986,556) 17,050 ‘ - 195,406
Other ' S : ' ‘
Government , :
Grants . - 1,458,318 . (1,458,318) - - -
Pension reserve  (7,356,000) : = (1,086,000) - 7,432,000 (1,010,000)
(6,894,199) 10,404,875 (11,996,911) . 229,793 7,432,000 (824,442) -
- ‘Restricted fixed .
_asset funds
General fixed . _ ' . . _
assetfund 10,493,304 - (165,993) 1,172,096 .. - 11,499,407
"DfE/ESFA _ ‘ .
Capital Grants 823,133 17,882 (16,205) " (751,621) . - 73,189
Other Capital » ' . .
Grants ' 144,155 1,314,466 - - (428,231) ‘ - 1,030,390
11,460,592 1,332,348 (182,198) ; (7,756) o 12,602,986
| Total Restricted : o ‘ . : o
funds . 4,566,393 11,737,223 (12,179,1089) . 222,037 7,432,000 11,778,544
Total funds ‘ '4,912,797' 12,034,334 (12,289,786) - "7,432,000 12,089,345 :



Our Community Multi Academy Trusit
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for'the year ended 31 August 2023

19.

Statement of funds (continued)

" Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

2023 2022
£ : £
Minterne Community Junior School o S 184,031 113,652
The Oaks Community Infant School . : : 51,140 . (28,838)
Bredgér Church of England Primary School ' - (31,964) (23,294)
Borden Church of England Primary School o . . 14,478 57,134
Central Trust - ‘ ’ S © .. (219,622)  (30,943)
Lydd Primai’y School ‘ ' 474,752 445,562
Dymchurch Primary School o : (67,204) 9,011
Lynsted and Norton Primary School S A S (470,692) ' (395,410)
Milstead and Frinsted Church of England Primary School: - 124,518 165,764
Petham Primary School . ‘ 105,780 - 108,169
Selling Church of England Prifnary School - ' 37,790 75,552
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve : : 203,007 496,359
Restricted fixed assetfund - . ' 13,041,915 12,602,986
Pension reserve ‘ o - (1,010,000)
Total . - o . ) : ' 13,244,922 12,089,345 :

The following academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£.

Bredgar Church of England Primary‘School ' : . (31,964)
Dymchurch Primary School ' _ ... (67,204)
Lynsted and Norton Primary School , L - (470,692)

Central Trust | L o (219,622)
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19.

" ‘needs of the pupils.

Statement of funds (continued)

At the time of the merger Lynsted and Norton Primary School had a deficit of £199k and an inadequate

Ofsted rating. The trust has invested in this school to aid improvement and falling pupil numbers over the
last 2 years, whilst a water leak and unexpected staff absence have added to the costs. This has made it
difficult to improve the deficit even though pupil numbers are improving. Discussions have been had with
the ESFA and a paper will be prepared for presentation at a further meeting. The Ofsted ratmg changed
to requires |mprovement from March 2023 : . .

The deficit for Bredgar Church of England Primary School requires ca(reful‘monitering as balancing the
budget will always be a strugle for this small rural Church of England School. The concentration will be on
ensuring that the school is at it's capacity for pupil numbers and that. funding in in place to support the .

Dymchurch has suffered from being under its PAN for pupils. Whilst the new Headteacher and the team
have done sterling work in improving the offer provided. by the school in terms of its curriculum and local
community the schoo! will need to review it's core staffing structure, pupil numbers and fundrng to ensure
that achelvements are supported by financial proprlety .

There is a Central Trust deficit. Dunng 2022/23 work was undertaken to prepare for the retirement. of the
existing CFQ. Significant one-off costs were incurred relating to the restructuring of the Business Support
Team. A re-grading of other central jobs was agreed by the Board after budgets and school contribution

_had been agreed for 2022/23. Work to look at savings and efficiencies in ways of working within the
- central team will be considered first before looking to increase contribution from schools to cover. -

The academy trust is taking the following action to manage its finances:
The key focus for 2023/24 is the management of the finances in the schools and more regular meetings

with Headteachers, including |mproved reports to include lmpact of proposed decisions on future years .
projections. .

‘Page 57



Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

19. ~ Statement of funds (continued)A

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the yéar was as follows:

Teaching
and ‘
educational Other . Other costs :
support " support Educational excluding Total © Total
staff costs ~ staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 A 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Minterne
Community ' o : . :
Junior School 1,496,588 196,506 152,179 121,871 . 1,967,144 2,061,715
The Oaks ' : _ '
- Community : : ; o
Infant School 1,192,400 225,544 68,986 237,939 1,724,869 1,868,793
Bredgar Church o
of England : ' , : T
Primary School 401,381 86,531 54,335 77,427 619,674 624,434
Borden Church
of England ) : ’ . o . ’
. Primary School 510,086 85,785 59,012 98,431 753,314 . 824,296 -
Lydd Primary ’ . . .
School © 1,084,004 179,657 84,802 173,653 1,522,116 - 1,533,272
Dymchurch : A _
Primary School 707,206 125,310 70,938 119,895 1,023,349 1,113,249
Lynsted and ' : ' :
* Norton Primary : o .
School , 452,213 51,095 45,051 92,972 641,331 686,416
Milstead and - ' :
Frinsted :
Church of
"England ' e : .
Primary School 461,059 68,488- . 63,984 74,164 . 667,695 641,520
Petham Primary : . - N : : .
School - 457,159 63,814 . 56,140 98,982 676,095 657,875
Selling Church ) B . . ’
of England . e '
‘Primary School . 555,196 112,348 77,443 . . 97,609 842,596 956,679
Central services 498,448 715,994 126,276 112,086 1,352,804 1,155,544
Academy trust 7,815,740 1,911,072 759,146 . . 1,305,029 . 11,790,987 12,123,793

——— —————— e—————— e———— e
—— A ———— I
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20. .

Total

Analysis of net assets between fund_s

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
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(824,442)

12,602,986

' . Restricted A

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - o - - 12515548 12,515,548

Current assets- ' 163,252 1,323,279 526,367 2,012,898
- Creditors due within one year - _ - (1,152,143) - - (1,152,143)
Creditors.due in more than one year - . (1_31,381) ' - (131,381)
Total . 163,252 . .39,755 13,041,915 13,244,922

Analysis of net assets between funds - priof yeér
| o Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds - funds = - funds funds

- 2022 2022 - 2022 2022

' £ £ £ ‘ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 11,499,409 11,499,409

Current assets _ _ 310,801 1,312,677 © 1,103,577 - 2,727,055
Creditors due within one year' " . - {1,055,269) - . {1,055,269)
Creditors due in more than one year , - (71,850) - (71,850)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . S (1,010,000) - (1,010,000)

310,801 12,089,345



Our Community Multi Academy Trust
(A company limited by guarantee)
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for the year ended 31 August 2023

21. Reconcilliatibn of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

22.

23,

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustmé'nts,for:

‘Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable ' '

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost’
Decrease/.(increa'se) in debtors '
Increase in creditors .

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

_Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from new borrowing '
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Cash flows from investihg activities’

Purchase of tangible fixed assets .
Capital grants from DfE Group

". Interest received -

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing acti\iities
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2023 2022
£ £
(64,423)  (255,452)
195,222 165,993
- (662,056)  (1,357,380)
- 781 118
181,000 969,000
29,000 . 117,000
674,887  (593,579)
94,063 49,999
- . 25,031
448,474 (879,270)
2023. 2022
£ £
. 89,550 -
(27,207) (885)
- 62,343 (885) -
. 2023 2022
£ £
(1,211,362)  (1,197,127)
662,056 1,357,380 -
(781) (118)
 (550,087)

160,135
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Qotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2023

' ' ,24. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2023 © 2022

, : ' £ £
Cashinhand and atbank - . S 941,090 - 980,360
thal cash and cash equivalents . ' ‘ | 1941,090 980,360

25. Analysrs of’chang_es in netidebt
- A1 - S
September At 31
- 2022 Cash flows August-2023
: , : . £ £
Cashatbankandinhand . - . - 980,359 (39,269) 941,090
Debt due within 1 year . . _ (8,765) (2,812) (11,577)

Debt due after 1 year , U © 0 (71,850) (59,531)  (131,381)

899,744 (101,612) 798,132

. 26. Pension commitments

The dcademy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic: and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme.
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multi-employer def ned
benefrt schemes .

The latest actuarial valuatlon of the TPS related to the perlod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 '
March 2019. .

There were no outstanding or prepaid centributiona at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is'a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme _governed by
the - Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
_ academles All teachers have-the option to- opt—out of the TPS followmg enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to- WhICh both the member and employer makes. contnbutrons as a

percentage of salary these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pensron_} B
beneflts are paid by public funds provrded by Parllament i
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26.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
desngn of benefits and many other factors.

The 31 March 2016 TPS actuarial valuation results were implemented from 1 September 2019. The key
elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation were: :

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensmnable pay (including a 0. 08% admmlstratlon
levy) ~
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

.. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the not|onal investment return. The current

SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is.2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March- 2020, were released in October 2023. The
revised employer contrrbutlon rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be |mplemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's penswn costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £952, 623 (2022 £884,600).

A copy of the valuation report and supportlng documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://iwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions .set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its. contributions t6 the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £810,000 (2022 -
£739,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £650,000 (2022 -- £582,000) and employees' -
contributions totalled £ 160,000 (2022 - £157,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22 5
per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obllgatron relates to the employees. of the academy trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from .the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulatlve service at both the predecessor school and the .
academy trust at the balance sheet date. .

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for. Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013:
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26. Pension commitments (continued) -

L Principéi actuarial assumptions

Kent County Council Pension Fund e _
) . 2023 2022

Rate of increase in salaries . . o 3.90- - 3.95
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation o 290 2.95' '
Discount rate ,for scheme liabilities o - 5.30 4.25 .

~

The current mortallty assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortallty rates
The assumed Ilfe expectations on retlrement age 65 are:

2023 . = 2022

_ : _ o ‘ Years = Years
Retiring today oo - o . v : .
Males - ' o 20.7 . 210
‘Females o - o 232 . 235
Retiring in 20 years - ' ' o
. Males : o . 220 . - 223
- Females . o 246 249
Sensitivity analysis
~ Kent County Council Pension Fund : :
: 2023 2022
o ) . . .-£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% o N (507,000)  (593,000)
Discount rate -0.1% '. , : . 542,000 637,000
Mortality assumption 1 yeér increase ' A - - 543,000 636,000
Mortality aséumption 1 year decrease A ' . (507,000) (594,000) -
Salary rate +0.1% e ‘ 525,000 - 615,000°

Salary rate -0.1% . o ©(524,000) . (614,000)

Share of scheme assets
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'26. Pension co_mmitmentﬁ (continued)

. . ’ (
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 At 31 August

) ' ' . August 2023 2022
i . ) ' £ £
© Equities 5,739,000 5,466,000
Gilts 53,000 48,000
Corporate bonds 1,249,000 1,103,000 -
Property ' 4 911,000 981,000 °
. -Cash and other liquid assets 95,000 141,000
Absolute return fund 648,000 600,000
Infrastructure 342,000 - ’
Restriction of pension asset as below (232,000) -
. : |
_ Tbtal market value of assets . - 8,805,000 . 8,339,0(50
The actual return on scheme assets was £(63,000) (2022 - £(103,000)).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows: .
| 2023 2022
£ £
. Current service cost: (764,000)  (1,547,000)
. Past service cost (62,000) C -
Interest income 370,000 134,000
. Interest cost » (399,000) - (251,000)
Administrative expenses (5,000) (4,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities (1,668,000) N

- (860,000)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit'obligatjén‘s were as follows:

2023

2022

e £ -
At 1 September 9,349,000 15,162,000
Past service costs £ 62,000 -
Interest cost 399,000 251,000
Employee contributions 160,000 157,000
Actuarial gains (1,837,000)  (7,669,000)
Benefits paid (92,000) (99,000) -
‘Current service cost 764,000 1,547,000
At 31 August 8,805,000

9,349,000 '
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26. .

27.

28.

Pension commltments (contlnued)

As set out'in note 2, the plan surplus as at 31 August 2023 was £232 000 (2022 liability £1,010 000) The
trustees, are not expecting to recover the surplus through reduced contributions and they do not
anticipate receiving any refunds from the plan and therefore the net surplus recognised within the
fmancual statements has been restricted to £NIL.

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows::

2023 2022

| , £ f

At1September S . ‘, 8,339,000 7,806,000

Interest income ‘ : o : 370,000 . 134,000
Actuarial losses o ' ; -  (617,000)  (237,000) .
Employer contributions : - S F, , 650,000 . 582,000

Employee contributions _ . : o 160,000 157,000

Benefits paid . .+ .- a T . . (92,000) - (99,000)

Administration expenses S , R (50000 (4,000)

. At 31 August S : _ 8,805,000 8,339,000

Opefating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the academy trust had comm|tments to make future minimum |ease payments under
non-cancellable operatmg leases as follows:

2023 . 2022

. A £ - £

 Not lateF than 1 year . . - . 28,380 14,545
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years . ‘ : 54,832 39,042

Later than 5 years o ‘ 75,430 83,370

{

158,642 136,957

Members' liability 7
Each member of the charitable company-.undertakes to contribute to the assets of the ’company in the

everit of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and Ilabllmes contracted

" . before he/she ceases tobe a member
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29.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees berng drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the -
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's

financial regulations and normal procurement procedures re|at|ng to connected and related party -

A transactrons

The following related party transactions have taken place:

During the year, Michael O’Connell, a director, conducted Designated Safeguarding Lead training for the
Academy Trust. The Total cost to the Academy Trust for this work, was £700 (2022: £Nil).

During the year, Ethos School Improvements Limited provided services to the Trust totalling £1,481
(2022: £1,552). Ethos School Improvements Limited has. a director who is a member of the Academy
Trust. ' :

Durlng the prior year ended 31 August 2022, The Diocese of Canterbury Academies Trust provided
services to the Academy Trust. They are a signatory member of the Academy Trust. The total cost to the
Academy Trust for this service was £4,000.

During the prior year ended 31 August 2022, Medway .Computers Ltd conducted work for the Academy
Trust. The company is owned by Mr D Lucas, the spouse of Mrs L Lucas (the COO until May 2023). The
total cost to the Academy Trust for this work was £1 822 -

During the prior. year ended 31 August 2022, Graham Whrtehead Plumblng and Heating conducted work
for the Academy Trust. Mr G Whitehead was the father of Mr D Whitehead (the Trust CEOQO). The total
cost to the Academy Trust for this work was £511.

These transactrons were conducted on normal commercral terms, at arm's’length wrthout exercise of any -
influence by the related parties involved.
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